
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
 

 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice Mayor Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 1 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
03/18/2014 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, March 18, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 

(Or As Soon As Possible following the Special Workshop) 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

 

   
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
d. SWEARING IN OF COUNCIL MEMBER TOM GOLTZENÉ (SEAT 5). 

 
*****Cake will be served after the swearing in ceremony***** 

  ****Short Recess will be taken***** 
 

Note:  Appointment of Mayor and Vice-Mayor will be conducted during the April 1, 2014, 
Town Council Meeting. (Pursuant to the Town Charter. Section 2(2)(a)) 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 2 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
03/18/2014 
 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 

a. Minutes for Approval: February 18, 2014  
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS - NONE 
 

  
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS – NONE 
 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - NONE 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03: FIRST READING (Livestock Waste - Haulers) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO HAULING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN 
THE TOWN;  PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR PERMITS AND 
PERMIT FEES; PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSAL OF LIVESTOCK WASTE ONLY 
AT APPROVED DISPOSAL SITES WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR 
PERMITTED HOURS OF HAULING LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  
PROVIDING FOR REQUIRED RECORDS AND AUDITING OF SUCH RECORDS BY 
THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR CHANGES TO LIVESTOCK WASTE 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04: FIRST READING (Livestock Waste - Property 

Owners) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO DEPOSITING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE 

2 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 3 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
03/18/2014 
 

WITHIN THE TOWN; AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE BY AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” 
ARTICLE 50 ENTITLED “PUBLIC NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-
035 TO BE ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR 
DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING THAT DEPOSITING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE IS A 
PUBLIC NUISANCE EXCEPT AS PROVIDED BY THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR 
REGISTRATION AND PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE 
DELIVERY AND USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE REPORTING AND NOTICE 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

c. ORDINANCES – PUBLIC HEARING 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2013-11 – SECOND AND FINAL READING / PUBLIC 
HEARING  (Historical Legacy) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, RELATING TO HISTORICAL LEGACY USES AND APPROVALS; AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 
(ULDC), TO AMEND SECTION 75-035, ENTITLED “USES AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2006” TO ADD 
THE TERM HISTORICAL LEGACY TO THE SECTION TITLE;  TO SPECIFY THE 
CATEGORY OF SPECIAL EXCEPTION NECESSARY FOR CERTAIN USES IN THE ZONING 
CATEGORY; TO REQUIRE THAT THE  PROPERTY ON WHICH THE USE IS LOCATED 
SHALL HAVE BEEN OWNED AND SUBJECT TO A HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION IN THE 
NAME OF THE OPERATOR; TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE DOES NOT PRESENT A 
THREAT TO PUBLIC HEALTH;  TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE  IS NOT CURRENTLY THE 
SUBJECT OF A TOWN CODE ENFORCEMENT ACTION; TO REQUIRE THAT THE 
OWNER-OPERATOR SUBMIT AN AFFIDAVIT STIPULATING TO COMPLIANCE WITH 
CERTAIN CONDITIONS;  TO REQUIRE REVIEW AND INSPECTION BY THE TOWN; 
PROVIDING THAT CERTAIN USES ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR APPROVAL UNDER THIS 
SECTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
FOR CODIFICATION; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
a. Gas Tax Maps Report 

  

3 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2014 
   Page 4 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
03/18/2014 
 

  
9.  OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. Auditor Retention Letter  

 
  
10. NEW BUSINESS - NONE 

 
 

11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
 
b. Town Attorney   
 
 
c. Town Council Members 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for April 1, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 

Minutes 

February 18, 2014 

 

 
 

5 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 1 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

 
 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, February 18, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

 
   

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Browning, Vice-
Mayor Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang, and Jim Rockett.  Also present were 
Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, Town Planning Consultant Jim 
Fleischmann, and Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 

c. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented.  Vice-
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
 

6 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 2 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA   
 

a. Minutes for Approval:  January 14, 2014 and February 4, 2014  
 
Motion:   Councilman Liang made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vice-Mayor 
Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 
  
3.   PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Roxana (Roxie) Colman, 3924 147th Avenue North, working at the Yesteryear Village Schoolhouse at 
the South Florida Fairgrounds, brought vintage photos from schools in the Loxahatchee Groves area.  
She spoke of the Schoolhouse and the Military Museum at Yesteryear Village, along with war service 
awards given to Loxahatchee Groves’ area resident.  Ms. Colman handed out copies of the photos to 
Council. 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, referenced Agenda Item 9.b. of Manure Ordinance No. 2012-03.   He 
mentioned that he is enrolled in the Florida Best Practices Equestrian Policy, and keeps manure in 
concrete containers.  He requested that Council ban any manure from coming into the Town from 
outside sources. 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS - NONE     

 
  

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS – NONE 
 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - NONE 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES  
 

  a. ORDINANCE NO. 2013-11 / SECOND READING / PUBLIC HEARING: 
  (Historical Legacy):   

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO HISTORICAL LEGACY USES AND 
APPROVALS; AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND SECTION 75-035, ENTITLED 

7 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 3 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

“USES AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2006” TO ADD THE TERM HISTORICAL LEGACY TO 
THE SECTION TITLE;  TO SPECIFY THE CATEGORY OF SPECIAL EXCEPTION 
NECESSARY FOR CERTAIN USES IN THE ZONING CATEGORY; TO REQUIRE 
THAT THE  PROPERTY ON WHICH THE USE IS LOCATED SHALL HAVE BEEN 
OWNED AND SUBJECT TO A HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION IN THE NAME OF THE 
OPERATOR OR HIS OR HER DIRECT RELATIVE RELATED BY BLOOD OR 
MARRIAGE; TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE DOES NOT PRESENT A THREAT TO 
PUBLIC HEALTH;  TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE HAS NO HISTORY OF CODE 
VIOLATIONS OR THE USE HAS BEEN BROUGHT INTO CODE COMPLIANCE; TO 
REQUIRE THAT THE OWNER-OPERATOR SUBMIT AN AFFIDAVIT 
STIPULATING TO COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN CONDITIONS; AND TO 
REQUIRE REVIEW AND INSPECTION BY THE TOWN;  PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 Town Attorney Cirullo stated that there was a discrepancy in the advertised title of Ordinance 

No. 2013-11.  The titles of the ordinance did not match on the first and second reading legal 
notice newspaper advertisements.  Ordinance No. 2013-11 will be re-advertised and go back to 
Town Council for a second first reading on March 4, 2014, to be followed by a second, second 
reading. 

 
 Council discussed qualifying issues and the loss of agriculture exemption, and whether the basis 

was cost recovery or fee based, and to change Commission to Council as a clerical matter. 
 
 Town Manager Kutney noted that the Town would try to review in house as much as possible so 

there would not be so much cost recovery imposed on the applicant. 
 
  

 8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 
 

a. RETGAC Vacant 
 
Town Manger Kutney reported to Council that Dr. Bill Louda submitted his resignation from the 
RETGAC (Roadway, Equestrian, Trails, and Greenway Advisory Committee) effective January 
22, 2014.  This was Mayor Browning’s appointment. 

 

8 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 4 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

b. Compton Road Equipment Demonstration 
 
Town Manager Kutney provided a video on the state of the art vegetation clearing equipment.  
There will be a meeting with Florida Power and Light (FPL) possibly on February 25th to watch 
the machine work on Compton Road. 
 
A Notice to Proceed and permit for the culverts was issued by the Town and filed with the 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD). The culvert is on order.   Keshavarz, the 
Town Engineers, has until March 3, 2014 to respond on the engineering.   
 
Town Attorney Cirullo reported that the Road Resurfacing Agreement is almost ready and he is 
waiting on the Engineer’s Report. 
 
Council discussed the filling of holes on Compton Road. 
 
Mayor Browning stated he did not want to delay filling any potholes but wanted to make sure 
that what was being used worked with the OGEM Process. 
 
Town Manage Kutney will do a Notice to Proceed. 
 
Town Manager Kutney mentioned that he will be meeting with Mr. Weisberg, Traffic Engineer 
from Palm Beach County concerning the signal on D Road and Okeechobee Boulevard.  Mr. 
Harris will also attend. 
 
Councilman Rockett asked if Council members could attend the meeting.   
 
Town Manger Kutney and Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant, met with Mr. Yee’s 
Architect Marcello Penso, on February 13th to review the site plan on the Palms West Plaza.   
 
Town Manager Kutney reported that per a request by Councilman Rockett he was providing an 
update on the speed hump matter.  Mr. Kutney had given a Notice to Proceed to Simmons and 
White, Town Traffic Engineers, for them to provide a template profile as it relates to the speed 
humps on Sycamore Drive and at 140th Avenue and 44th Street.  He issued this on February 11th 
and asked that the information be returned by February 26th  
 
Council discussed templates for speed humps, and specifications. 
 
Town Manager Kutney stated speed humps and spacing will be on the March 4, 2014 Town 
Council Agenda. 
 

9 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 5 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

Council discussed speed humps versus speed tables, and which road might be the best example 
to study. 
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road, reported he sat in on many discussions concerning speed humps, and 
expressed concerns that the engineers would not sign off on the roads without guardrails along 
the canals.  
 
Council discussed resurfacing roads and who would take over the ownership.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that once the B Road agreement is executed, it will be the Town 
doing the work.  Once the road work has been completed, the Loxahatchee Groves Water 
Control District (LGWCD) can maintain the canal. 
 
Dr. Bill Louda 1300 B Road, stated roads without guard rail are fine. 
 
Town Manager Kutney, in response to an inquiry from Councilman Rockett concerning the 
home occupational license business going to a Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Meeting; stated, the 
P&Z Board had no development matters for the meeting in February so it did not meet.  Council 
can direct Staff to convene the P&Z Board for the home occupational matter during March or 
April.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to submit the home occupational item for the 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting scheduled for March 13th.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel 
seconded the motion.   Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1 with Councilman Goltzene casting 
the dissenting vote.  
 
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. Reconciliation of ULDC work authorization (Town Manager Kutney) 

 
Town Manager Kutney requested the Town Council authorized $1,500 the complete the Unified 
Land Development Code Review Committee (ULDC) Annual Summary Report; and $222.50 for 
the overages and any additional final expenses for the Historical Legacy.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion approved the authorization of requested funds 
for ULDC and Historical Legacy.  Councilman Goltzené seconded the motion.  
 
Council discussed costs, review of the ordinance, gun uses, the fact that the ULDC was 
overregulated, possibly reducing staff at the meetings, Attorney General Opinions, and how the 
ULDC Board was directed to proceed.  

10 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 6 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road, expressed his opinions on the reference to the term “ag” and its uses.  
Upon vote, the motion passed 4/1 with Councilman Rockett casting a dissenting vote. 
   
b. Discussion of Manure Ordinance No. 2012-03. 
 
Town Manager Kutney reaffirmed that as long as the Management Company has been employed 
by the Town, they have attempted to get a handle on the problem with regulating the hauling of 
manure.  He further explained the procedures Staff has implemented in order to keep the hauling 
under control. He stated that during the IGC (Intergovernmental Coordination Committee) 
Meetings, approximately seven (7) or eight (8) months ago, when Mayor Browning served as 
Council Representative, and Frank Schiola served as the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control 
District (LGWCD) Representative, Mr. John Bonde, and Mr. Michael O’Dell from Wellington, 
who shared some of the nightmares Wellington had dealing with the phosphorus issues. The 
regulations that are in place are from Ordinance No 2012-03. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to impose a moratorium immediately, and 
move through the committees to make a change to Ordinance No. 2012-03. Councilman 
Goltzené seconded the motion, for discussion. 
 
Councilman Goltzené discussed keeping the manure dumping within Town limits.  He suggested 
shutting out loads coming in from outside, but not hauling out. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained a couple of concepts of a moratorium. A moratorium needs to 
go through a formal adoption process.  The Town can stop the hauling while it goes through 
procedures.  The changes will have to go through the Planning and Zoning Committee and two 
reading before Town Council.   
 
Councilman Rockett revised his motion to state the Town would have a moratorium to 
allow only intra-movement within the Town. 
 
Town Manager Kutney stated we would have to beef up our code enforcement. 
 
Councilman Liang reinforced the comments of excessive manure hauling and suggested placing 
a ban during the winter months when the haulers are hauling and dumping twenty-four (24) 
hours a day.  The Town does need someone at night to stop the haulers. 
 
Discussion followed concerning hiring someone to watch for haulers at night, using the fine 
money to hire someone, restricting hauling from October through March, and providing a 
dumping site within the Town until the situation is resolved, 
 

11 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 7 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo asked if this would be an absolute ban, and also if the load size would be 
reduced.  He also questioned that this motion would include no ban for taking manure out of 
Town. The answer to each question was in the affirmative. 
 
Water quality issues were a concern, as well as, best management practices.  
 
Town Manager Kutney will provide a copy of the Best Management Practices Policy Mr. Harris 
had referred to. 
 
Councilman Rockett recapped on the motion he made and modified, which was that the 
Town have a zoning in progress for manure hauling restricting anything coming into the 
Town, and that the Town will be working on distribution within the Town.  Councilman 
Liang made the second.  
 
Bill Louda, 1300 E Road, provided a report on water quality basically on the Town canals.  He 
suggested that by making the hauling internal the Town could make it like a co-op with no fees.   
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road, referred to the State Statutes for reference. 
 
Lt. Combs, from the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office (PBSO), stated any illegal dumping is 
a felony. 
 
Upon vote the motion passed 5/0. 
 
Mayor Browning called for a break 9:00 – 9:05. 
 
  
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Discussion of Town Management/Council Priorities/Business Plan Initiatives. 

 
Town Manger Kutney brought the Priorities/Business Plan Initiatives back to Council for their 
review and comments.  He requested that if Council would like any item reclassified to please let 
him know.  
 
Council requested a degree of completion, if any completion dates were known, and the annual 
road list for gas tax. 
 
Town Manager Kutney will provide the information via separate correspondence. 
 

12 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 8 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

b. Bernardo Alzate Nursery Request to end the one (1) year permit restrictions for Property 
Owner Manure Permit per Ordinance No. 2012-03. 

 
Town Manager Kutney reported that Mr. Rios representing Alzate Nursery was the gentleman 
who had two (2) permits to haul one thousand (1000) loads of manure. The Town did approve an 
additional permit for fifty (50) loads.  Now that the Town has direction, this matter has been 
taken care of.   The Town will not renew Mr. Rios’ permit when it lapses in March. 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
Ann Parker, 15565 Collecting Canal Road, felt this had been a good meeting.  

 
b. Town Attorney   

 
Town Attorney Cirullo apologized for Ordinance No. 2013-11 not being able to be heard this 
evening due to an advertising matter.  The Boca Raton case concerning citizens’ initiatives had 
been resolved. 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Goltzene thanked everyone for coming to the Town Council Meeting. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel also thanked everyone for coming, and wished Councilman Liang a Happy 
birthday. 
 
Councilman Liang thanked everyone for coming and celebrating his birthday with him. 
 
Councilman Rockett mentioned a large Minto Development meeting, in the evening, on February 
19, 2014 at Seminole Ridge.  He mentioned that he would like the golf cart ordinance posted on 
the website.  Thanks to everyone for coming. 
 
Mayor Browning also thanked everyone for coming, and noted that Gary Morello (Gary’ 
Midway) passed away last week.   As a note, everyone in three zip codes area can vote their 
opinion on the Minto project at the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 

13 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2014 
   Page 9 of 9  

 
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
02/18/2014 
 

12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned the meeting at 
9:17 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________    __________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk    David Browning, Mayor 

 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved at the March 18, 2014, Town Council Meeting. 
 

14 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 4. 

PRESENTATIONS 

None 

 
 

15 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 5. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

None 

 
 

16 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 6. 

RESOLUTIONS 

None 

 
 

17 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2014-03  - 1st Reading 

(Livestock Waste Haulers) 

 

 
 

18 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 1 of 9 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-03 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO 
HAULING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  
PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR PERMITS 
AND PERMIT FEES; PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSAL OF 
LIVESTOCK WASTE ONLY AT APPROVED DISPOSAL SITES 
WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR PERMITTED HOURS 
OF HAULING LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN;  
PROVIDING FOR REQUIRED RECORDS AND AUDITING OF 
SUCH RECORDS BY THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR 
CHANGES TO LIVESTOCK WASTE REGULATIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 6, 2010, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

adopted Ordinance 2010-003, to provide requirements for permits by landowners and transporters 

of manure and horse bedding (livestock waste) in the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2012, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2012-03, which 

amended and restated Ordinance 2010-03, to provide for properties eligible to receive manure and 

horse bedding materials (livestock waste), amend permit requirements and provide regulations on 

how such materials are used on eligible properties; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has heard concerns from Town Management and the public 

relating to the current permitting process and continued abuses by haulers and property owners for 

dumping manure and horse droppings (livestock waste) on properties within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council continues to be concerned with water quality within the 

drainage canals in the Town, and has heard from residents with scientific and academic 

19 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 2 of 9 

backgrounds that raised phosphorous levels are possible from continued abuse of manure and horse 

bedding (livestock waste) by haulers and property owners within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, improper hauling and disposal of Livestock Waste is a nuisance, attracting 

flies and emanating odors to nearby properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that increased regulation of livestock waste haulers 

is necessary to prevent illegal dumping and pollution, and avoid the creation of nuisances within the 

Town; and,   

 WHEREAS, the provisions of this Ordinance shall replace and supersede the requirements 

for livestock waste haulers in Ordinance 2012-03.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.      

 Section 2. Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(a) Approved disposal site: A parcel of real property in which a Town, county or state 

registration or permit has been issued for the disposal and/or processing of livestock 

waste, as amended from time to time, and/or a plot of land that is conducting bona fide 

agricultural activities in accordance with F.S. § 193.461. 

(b) Bona fide agricultural purposes:  means farming, pasture, grove, or forestry operations, 

including horticulture, floriculture, viticulture, dairy, livestock, poultry, bee and 

aquaculture, consistent with Section 823.14, Florida Statutes (Right to Farm) and Section 

570.02, Florida Statutes (Agriculture).                   

20 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 3 of 9 

(c) Commercial livestock waste hauler: Person(s), firm(s), corporation(s), or other legal 

entity(ies) permitted by the Town to provide livestock waste removal or delivery services 

for a fee, or in exchange for payment, within the Town in accordance with terms and 

conditions established by this ordinance. 

(d) Composting: The process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is 

carried out under controlled aerobic conditions, and which stabilizes the organic fraction 

into a material which can easily and safely be stored, handled, and used in an 

environmentally acceptable manner for a period of 30 to 90 days.  

(e) Hauler:  when used herein, collectively Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler and 

Livestock Waste Self-Haulers 

(f) Livestock: All animals of the equine, bovine, or swine class.  

(g) Livestock facility: Property under single ownership or control where livestock is raised 

and or boarded.  

(h) Livestock waste: Wastes composed of excreta of animals and residual materials that have 

been used for bedding, sanitary, or feeding purposes for such animals. For purposes of 

this ordinance, livestock waste that has been properly composted shall not be considered 

livestock waste.  

(i) Livestock waste self-hauler: Property owner or authorized representative registered with 

the Town to provide livestock waste removal services from their own property using their 

own equipment and vehicles, to an Approved Disposal Site in accordance with the terms 

and conditions established by this ordinance.  

21 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 4 of 9 

(j) Nuisance:  the unreasonable, unwarranted and/or unlawful activity and/or use of property, 

which causes inconvenience or damage to others, either to individuals and/or to the 

general public. 

(k) Livestock waste storage area: An area constructed of impermeable material such as 

concrete or asphalt; with an impermeable cover; or a mechanical storage container that 

can be sealed, lifted, and transported. 

(l) Load: approximately twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) cubic yards of Livestock Waste.  

 Section 3. All Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers and Livestock Waste Self-

Haulers must comply with the requirements of this ordinance.   

 Section 4. Permitting Requirements. All Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers 

and Livestock Waste Self-Haulers transporting Livestock Waste within the Town must obtain a 

permit from the Town prior to engaging in any hauling of Livestock Waste.   

(a) In obtaining the permit, the Commercial Livestock Waste Haulers and Livestock 

Waste Self-Hauler will: 

1. Identify every property within the Town from which it will haul Livestock Waste, 

and every Approved Disposal Site (whether located within the Town or not) to 

which it will deliver Livestock Waste; 

2. Provide copies of all licenses and registrations for vehicles used for hauling 

Livestock Waste. 

3. Acknowledge on a form provided by the Town that (1) loads to be deposited 

within the Town originate from a Livestock Facility within the Town, or shows by 

separate affidavit its load originated from outside the State of Florida; (2) upon 

receipt of a request from a property owner within the Town for Livestock Waste, 

22 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 5 of 9 

it will confirm prior to engaging in hauling that the Livestock Waste will be 

deposited within a Livestock waste storage area or used solely for bona fide 

agricultural purposes, and that the property owner has obtained the necessary 

permit from the Town; and (4) that it has read and reviewed this ordinance and 

agrees to its requirements and provisions, and will adhere to such in providing its 

hauling services. 

4. Pay the required fees for the permit. 

(b) An annual permit shall be valid from October 1 to September 30, and shall expire 

each September 30 regardless of the date it is issued.  Haulers are responsible for the timely 

renewal of the annual permits.     

(c) The annual permit fee for a Commercial Hauler shall be $500.00.  The annual 

permit fee for Livestock Waste Self-Haulers shall be $100.00.  An annual permit shall permit the 

Hauler to transport up to twenty (20) loads.  The permit fee shall be $2000.00 if a Hauler 

transports Livestock Waste prior to obtaining a permit from the Town.       

(d) A Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler may transport in excess of twenty (20) 

loads, for a maximum of thirty (30) additional loads, at an additional fee of $40.00 per load, paid 

in advance to the Town.  Should the Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler fail to pay such fee in 

advance, the fee shall be _____ per load. 

(e) A Livestock Waste Self-Hauler may transport thirty (30) additional loads, at an 

additional fee of _____ per load, paid in advance to the Town.  Should the Livestock Waste Self-

Hauler fail to pay such fee in advance, the fee shall be _____ per load. 

(f) The fees set forth in this ordinance may be amended by the Town Council by 

resolution. 

23 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 6 of 9 

(g) No permit shall be issued to a Hauler who has not remedied previous violations of 

this Ordinance.  

 Section 5. Origin of Livestock Waste.  All Livestock Waste deposited at Approved 

disposal sites in the Town must originate from within the Town, or be shown by affidavit to have 

originated from outside the State of Florida. 

 Section 6. Approved disposal sites. Haulers may deposit Livestock Waste only 

at Approved Disposal Sites for the purpose of composting in an approved composting area, or for 

bona fide agricultural purposes.     

 Section 7. Authorized Times for Hauling within the Town.  Hauling of Livestock 

Waste within the Town by any Hauler shall be permitted only between the hours of 9:00 a.m. 

through 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except holidays as listed on the Town website. 

Hauling of Livestock Waste is prohibited at all other times.   

 Section 8. Required Records.      Hauling records shall be provided by Haulers to 

the Town Manager each month, no later than the fifth (5th) business day of the month following 

the month for which the report is filed.  Hauling records shall identify the waste source, quantity 

in cubic yards, and the waste disposal site with quantity deposited in cubic yards within an 

approved site. Hauling records shall include signed load tickets or affidavits certifying the loads 

from both the source and disposal site owners. Failure to timely provide monthly hauling records 

shall result in the revocation of the permit. The Town reserves the right to audit the hauling 

record and load tickets from the generating properties and disposal sites which have been 

approved as a disposal site as defined herein.  The failure to cooperate with such audit shall 

result in the revocation of a permit.    

24 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 7 of 9 

 Section 9. Changes to Regulations.  The Town Council reserves the right to amend 

this Ordinance at any time, and any such amendments will apply to both future permits, and 

active permits unless specifically exempted by the Town Council.    

 Section 10. Revocation of Permits.  A Hauler that violates any of the provisions of 

this ordinance may have its permit revoked by the Town Manager. Should a person violate this 

ordinance on more than one (1) occasion during a calendar year, that person shall not be granted 

a permit from the Town for a period of one (1) calendar year from the date of the last violation.   

 Section 11. Nuisance.  A violation of this ordinance is deemed by the Town Council 

to be a public nuisance. 

 Section 12. Violation of State Laws.  The Town Council specifically finds that a 

violation of this ordinance presents a public nuisance for purposes of enforcement of Section 

403.413, Florida Statutes, and law enforcement officers charged with the enforcement of state 

and local laws within the Town shall strictly enforce Section 403.413, Florida Statutes. Upon the 

issuance of a violation notice under Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or this ordinance, any 

permits issued by the Town to the Hauler shall be suspended and the Hauler shall cease all 

Livestock Waste hauling until such time as a hearing is conducted or the fines paid.    

 Section 13. Enforcement.  This ordinance shall be enforced as follows: 

(a) Law enforcement officers are authorized to enforce this ordinance.  In addition to 

penalties resulting from a violation of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, the fines for violations 

of this ordinance shall be: 

First Offense Second Offense Third Offense All Additional 
Offenses 

$100 $250 $400 $500 

 

25 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 8 of 9 

(b) The Town may also file charges for any offense in a court with jurisdiction, in 

which case the penalty shall be a fine of $500, imprisonment not to exceed sixty (60) days, or 

both, for each violation of this ordinance.  The Town shall recover its costs of prosecution, 

including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs for law enforcement and Town 

employees. 

(c) To the extent authorized by law, the Town Administration is authorized to use the 

Town’s Code Enforcement process to enforce violations of this ordinance where a law 

enforcement officer has not otherwise issued violations of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or 

of this ordinance.  In such instances, the fine shall be the maximum permitted by law.   

(d) Each day a violation remains, and each haul for which there is no permit, 

constitutes a separate violation of this ordinance.   

 Section 14.  Effect on Ordinance 2012-03.  The provisions herein as to regulations 

for Haulers (referred to in Ordinance 2012-03 as transporters) of Livestock Waste, referred to in 

Ordinance 2012-03 as “manure and horse bedding,” supersedes and replaces regulations as to 

Haulers in Ordinance 2012-03. Regulations relating to property owners and the use of Livestock 

Waste on Property within the Town shall remain in effect except to the extent in conflict with 

this Ordinance.   

 Section 15. Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All Ordinances or part of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are in the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 16. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

26 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-03 {100001.DOC } Page 9 of 9 

 Section 17. Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

 Section 18. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage and adoption.  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 18th DAY OF 
MARCH, 2014. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2014.       
              

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 

27 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.b. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  - 1st Reading 

(Livestock Waste Property Owners) 

 

 
 

28 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 1 of 10 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO 
DEPOSITING OF LIVESTOCK WASTE WITHIN THE TOWN; 
AMENDING THE TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE BY AMENDING PART III ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL 
REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 50 ENTITLED “PUBLIC 
NUISANCES” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 50-035 TO BE 
ENTITLED “USE OF LIVESTOCK WASTE;” PROVIDING FOR 
DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING THAT DEPOSITING OF 
LIVESTOCK WASTE IS A PUBLIC NUISANCE EXCEPT AS 
PROVIDED BY THIS SECTION; PROVIDING FOR 
REGISTRATION AND PERMITS, REQUIREMENTS AND 
LIMITATIONS ON THE DELIVERY AND USE OF LIVESTOCK 
WASTE REPORTING AND NOTICE REQUIREMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION OF PERMITS AND 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR  CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 6, 2010, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves adopted 

Ordinance 2010-003, to provide requirements for permits by landowners and transporters of manure 

and horse bedding (livestock waste) in the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2012, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2012-03, which amended 

and restated Ordinance 2010-003, to provide for properties eligible to receive manure and horse 

bedding materials (livestock waste), amend permit requirements and provide regulations on how such 

materials are used on eligible properties; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has heard concerns from Town Management and the public 

relating to the current permitting process and continued abuses by haulers and property owners for 

dumping manure and horse droppings (livestock waste) on properties within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council continues to be concerned with water quality within the 

drainage canals in the Town, and has heard from residents with scientific and academic backgrounds 

29 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 2 of 10 

that raised phosphorous levels are possible from continued abuse of livestock waste dumping by 

transporters and property owners within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that increased equestrian activities in neighboring 

municipalities during certain periods of time each year causes transporters of livestock waste 

originating on facilities in those areas to seek out places in close proximity to those communities to 

dump their loads and avoid expenses and perhaps industry regulations associated with taking such 

loads to facilities designed to accept such; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that when used properly and in limited quantities, 

livestock waste can provide agricultural benefits, and thus a total ban on the dumping of livestock 

waste is not in the best interest of the community; and,  

 WHEREAS, on the other hand, improper disposal of Livestock Waste is a nuisance, attracting 

flies and emanating odors to nearby properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council seeks to balance permitting the limited and beneficial use of 

livestock waste with avoiding nuisances created by abuses associated with the dumping of such 

materials within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town believes that given the limited beneficial use of livestock waste, it is 

fair and reasonable to require property owners of property on which livestock waste is to be deposited 

for use for agricultural purposes obtain a permit from the Town so that nuisances can be avoided and 

the Town can effectively enforce regulations and laws intended to prevent illegal dumping of livestock 

waste and prevent pollution.      

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

30 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 3 of 10 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 

true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption hereof.  

Ordinance 2012-03 is amended as set forth herein.   

 Section 2. The Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) is amended to amend 

Part III, entitled “Supplemental Regulations,” Article 50, entitled “Public Nuisance,” to create a 

new Section 50-035, to be entitled “Use of Livestock Waste,” to read as follows: 

PART III – SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE 50 – PUBLIC NUISANCES 

Section 50-035. – Use of Livestock Waste. 

(A) The following definitions shall apply to this Section: 

1. Approved disposal site: A real property in which a Town, county or state registration or 
permit has been issued for the disposal and/or processing of livestock waste, as amended 
from time to time, and/or a plot of land that is conducting bona fide agricultural activities in 
accordance with F.S. § 193.461. 

2. Bona fide agricultural purposes:  means farming, pasture, grove, or forestry operations, 
including horticulture, floriculture, viticulture, dairy, livestock, poultry, bee and aquaculture, 
consistent with Section 823.14, Florida Statutes (Right to Farm) and Section 570.02, Florida 
Statutes (Agriculture).                   

3. Commercial livestock waste hauler: Person(s), firm(s), corporation(s), or other legal 
entity(ies) permitted by the Town to provide livestock waste removal services for a fee 
within the Town in accordance with terms and conditions established by this ordinance. 

4. Composting: The process by which biological decomposition of organic solid waste is 
carried out under controlled aerobic conditions, and which stabilizes the organic fraction 
into a material which can easily and safely be stored, handled, and used in an 
environmentally acceptable manner for a period of 30 to 90 days.  

5. Hauler:  when used herein, collectively Commercial Livestock Waste Hauler and Livestock 
Waste Self-Haulers 

6. Livestock: All animals of the equine, bovine, or swine class.  
7. Livestock facility:  Property under single ownership or control where livestock is raised and 

or boarded.  
8. Livestock waste: Wastes composed of excreta of animals and residual materials that have 

been used for bedding, sanitary, or feeding purposes for such animals. For purposes of this 
article, livestock waste that has been properly composted shall not be considered livestock 
waste.  

9. Livestock waste self-hauler: Property owner or authorized representative registered with the 
Town to provide livestock waste removal services from their own property using its own 

31 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 4 of 10 

equipment and vehicles, to an Approved Disposal Site in accordance with the terms and 
conditions established by this ordinance.  

10. Livestock waste storage area: An area constructed of impermeable material such as concrete 
or asphalt; with an impermeable cover; or a mechanical storage container that can be sealed, 
lifted, and transported. 

11. Load: approximately twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) cubic yards of Livestock Waste.    
12. Nuisance: The unreasonable, unwarranted and/or unlawful activity and/or use of property, 

which causes inconvenience or damage to others, either to individuals and/or to the general 
public. 
 

(B) The deposit and/or dumping of Livestock Waste, unless done in strict compliance with this 

Section, is declared to be a public nuisance and is prohibited. 

(C) The deposit of Livestock Waste is permitted only on Approved disposal sites within the 

Town.   

(D) Only Livestock Waste that originates from within the Town or is shown by the filing of an 

affidavit by the property owner that it originated from outside the State of Florida may be 

deposited on property within the Town. 

(E) A property owner must obtain a permit from the Town prior to accepting any Livestock 

Waste on the property.  The permit will serve as the registration with the Town pursuant to 

this Ordinance. A property owner may have only one permit at a time.   An annual permit 

shall be valid from October 1 to September 30, and shall expire each September 30 

regardless of the date it is issued.  Property owners are responsible for the timely renewal of 

the annual permits.     

(F) The requirements for the permit required by subsection (E) are as follows: 

1. With the exception of a Town Manager-approved permit for residential property 

hereinafter provided, the property on which the Livestock waste is to be deposited 

must be designated as agricultural by the Palm Beach County Tax Collector for 

property tax purposes; provided that when a property owner applies for the first time 

32 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 5 of 10 

to the Town for a permit, the property owner may obtain its initial permit 

notwithstanding not having the agricultural use tax designation when the property 

owner certifies to the Town Manager that the property owner is making a good faith 

effort to obtain the agricultural use tax designation.  This exception shall apply only 

for the initial permit.  No subsequent permits may be issued until the property 

obtains the agricultural use tax designation.  Property owners of property designated 

as residential by the Palm Beach County Tax Collector may obtain a permit from the 

Town Manager when the property owner of the residential property demonstrates to 

the Town Manager that the Livestock Waste is solely for bona fide agricultural use 

on-site.  The Town Manager shall advise the Town Council of all permits approved 

for residential properties.     

2. The permit will be in the name of the record owner of the property.  The property 

owner must be the applicant for the permit. 

3. The property owner shall certify that the Livestock Waste originates from within the 

Town or is shown by the filing of an affidavit by the property owner that it 

originated from outside the State of Florida. 

4. The Livestock Waste is being used by the property owner for bona fide agricultural 

purposes in appropriately limited quantities pursuant to Best Management Practices 

(BMP).  The property owner shall provide the Town with a copy of the applicable 

BMP.  The property owner must advise the Town of the total quantity of Livestock 

Waste to be delivered to the property and its intended use.    

5. A permit issued to a property owner pursuant this Ordinance is limited to one Hauler.  

The property owner must identify the Hauler at the time of applying for the permit.  

33 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 6 of 10 

The Hauler must have a permit from the City and be in compliance with the 

ordinance at all times during the effectiveness of the owner’s permit.  The property 

owner must advise the Town in writing of a change in Hauler(s) prior to receiving 

any Livestock Waste from the Hauler.   

6. The acceptance of a permit by the property owner shall provide consent for a Town 

representative to inspect the property solely for purposes of ensuring compliance 

with the terms of the permit.   

7. There shall be no charge for a Property Owner Permit.  

8. The Town may request copies of permits and licenses for the designated Hauler, as 

well as drawings or layouts of the property to verify that the Livestock Waste shall 

be deposited and used in compliance with this Section 50-035.    

(G) All Livestock Waste deposited in the Town must originate from within the Town, or be 

shown by affidavit to have originated from outside the State of Florida. 

(H) Delivery of Livestock Waste shall be permitted only between the hours of 9:00 a.m. through 

4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except holidays as listed on the Town website. Hauling 

of Livestock Waste is prohibited at all other times.  Delivery must also be avoided during 

storm events, or when the ground is saturated.   

(I) A Property Owner may accept a maximum of twenty (20) loads pursuant to the Permit, with 

a maximum of four (4) loads in a calendar month.  The Property Owner shall ensure that its 

Hauler not dump Livestock Waste within fifty (50) feet of the property line or within 

seventy five (75) feet of any well or other body of water on the property.   

(J) The Property Owner shall spread the Livestock Waste in accordance with BMP within 

seventy-two (72) hours of receipt of the materials.  Property Owners are required to use 

34 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 7 of 10 

appropriate equipment to properly spread Livestock Waste.  Livestock Waste shall not be 

spread within fifty (50) feet of the property line or within seventy five (75) feet of any well 

or other body of water on the property.  Front end loaders shall not be used. Crops should be 

planted as soon as possible after spreading.   

(K) The use of Animal Waste as fill on property is strictly prohibited.  

(L) The Property Owner shall post a sign at the entrance on the property at the location where 

deliveries are received with a contact telephone number for neighbors to be able to contact 

the property owner about concerns with the delivery of Livestock Waste on the property.    

(M) Delivery Records shall be provided by Property Owners to the Town Manager each month, 

no later than the fifth (5th) business day of the month following the month for which the 

report is filed.  The Delivery records shall identify the waste source, quantity in cubic yards, 

the bona fide agricultural use of the Livestock waste, and the quantity deposited in cubic 

yards. Failure to provide monthly delivery records shall result in the revocation of the 

permit. The Town reserves the right to audit the delivery record and request records from the 

Hauler that delivered the Livestock Waste to the property.  The failure to cooperate with 

such audit shall result in the revocation of a permit. 

(N) Field application records on nutrient application rates shall be maintained by the Property 

Owner and delivered to the Town Manager on a monthly basis at the same time as the 

Delivery Records are delivered.    

(O) The Town Council reserves the right to amend this Ordinance at any time, and any such 

amendments will apply to both future permits, and active permits unless specifically 

exempted by the Town Council.    

35 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 8 of 10 

(P) A Property Owner that violates any of the provisions of this ordinance may have its permit 

revoked by the Town Manager. Should a person violate this ordinance on more than one (1) 

occasion during a calendar year, that person shall not be granted a permit from the Town for 

a period of one (1) calendar year from the date of the last violation.   

(Q) A violation of this ordinance is deemed by the Town Council to be a public nuisance. 

(R) The Town Council specifically finds that a violation of this ordinance presents a public 

nuisance for purposes of enforcement of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, and law 

enforcement officers charged with the enforcement of state and local laws within the Town 

shall strictly enforce Section 403.413, Florida Statutes. Upon the issuance of a violation 

notice under Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or this ordinance, any permits issued by the 

Town to the Property Owner shall be suspended and the Property Owner shall cease 

accepting Livestock Waste until such time as a hearing is conducted or the fines paid.    

(S) In addition to enforcement pursuant to Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, this ordinance shall 

be enforced as follows: 

(1) Law enforcement officers are authorized to enforce this ordinance.  In addition to 

penalties resulting from a violation of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, the fines for 

violations of this ordinance shall be: 

First Offense Second Offense Third Offense All Additional 
Offenses 

$100 $250 $400 $500 

 
(2) The Town may also file charges for any offense in a court with jurisdiction, in which 

case the penalty shall be a fine of $500, imprisonment not to exceed sixty (60) days, 

or both, for each violation of this ordinance.  The Town shall recover its costs of 

36 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 9 of 10 

prosecution, including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs for law 

enforcement and Town employees. 

(3) To the extent authorized by law, the Town Administration is authorized to use the 

Town’s Code Enforcement process to enforce violations of this ordinance where a 

law enforcement officer has not otherwise issued violations of Section 403.413, 

Florida Statutes, or of this ordinance.  In such instances, the fine shall be the 

maximum permitted by law.   

(4) Each day a violation remains, and each haul for which there is no permit, constitutes 

a separate violation of this ordinance.   

(T) Nothing in this ordinance is to be construed to permit a Solid Waste Management Facility in 

conflict with state and county regulations. 

 Section 3.  Effect on Ordinance 2012-03.  The provisions herein as to regulations for 

Property Owners for delivery and use of Livestock Waste, referred to in Ordinance 2012-03 as 

“manure and horse bedding,” supersedes and replaces regulations as to delivery and use of Haulers 

in Ordinance 2012-03.  

 Section 4. Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All Ordinances or part of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are in the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, such 

holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 Section 6. Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

37 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Ordinance No. 2014-04  {220001.DOC } Page 10 of 10 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to "Section", 

"Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 

passage and adoption.  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 18th DAY OF 
MARCH, 2014. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2014.       
              

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  

      
 FLORIDA 

    
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
   
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 
        
MDC 

38 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a. & b. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No’s. 2014-03 and 2014-04 

(Backup Information) 

 

 
 

39 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



43 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



44 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



45 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



47 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



48 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



49 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



52 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Good Neighbor Guidelines 
for On-farm and Offsite Application of 

Livestock Waste 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEPTEMBER, 2002 
55 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



G O O D    N E I G H B O R    G U I D E L I N E S    F O R    O N - F A R M    A N D    O F F S I T E    A P P L I C A T I O N    O F    L I V E S T O C K    W A S T E   

GOOD NEIGHBOR GUIDELINES 
FOR ON-FARM AND OFFSITE ANIMAL WASTE MANAGEMENT 

 
 

PURPOSE 
 
 
• Protect Florida’s environment. 

 

 
• Increase public understanding of the animal and agriculture  industry. 

 

 
• Improve community relations by implementing best management practices to address unwant- 

ed conditions  associated with on-farm and offsite application of animal waste. 
 
 

FLORIDA WATERS 
 
 

GROUND WATER  PROTECTION 

Ground  water is one of Florida’s most vital resources  supplying most ecosystems and providing 
drinking water for 90% of the state’s population. Since the state’s geology makes ground water vul- 
nerable  to  contamination,   its  protection   is  crucial.  The  agricultural  industry  can  take  steps 
towards effectively protecting  Florida’s ground water: 

 
 

Stockpiling 
Apply animal waste at agronomic rates to prevent the leaching of nutrients  past the root zone. 
Dairies typically use liquid manure  management systems where the solids have considerably 
fewer nutrients  than effluent from wastewater storage lagoons. Be aware that agronomic rates 
may be exceeded by multiple applications and/or staging large piles of solids or sludge for an 
extended period of time in the fields. 

 
 

Poultry operations and horse farms typically use dry manure management systems where the 
solids contain higher amounts of nutrients.   Care should be taken to prevent over application 
of nutrients  (See the Contacts and References section on page 7 for contact information relat- 
ed to managing agronomic rates.) 

 
 

Composting 
Poultry operations and horse farms often use composting to convert bedding and manure into 
a rich and odor-free soil amendment  for use on the farm or for sale. Composting  is a method 
whereby  the  organic component  of the  solid waste is biologically decomposed  under  con- 
trolled conditions  to a state in which it can be handled, stored, and applied to the land with- 
out adversely affecting the environment.  A key phrase in the above definition is “under con- 
trolled   conditions.”   This  distinguishes   composting   from  the   biological  decomposition 
processes that occur naturally, and it also differentiates composting from some objectionable 

56 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



G O O D    N E I G H B O R    G U I D E L I N E S    F O R    O N - F A R M    A N D    O F F S I T E    A P P L I C A T I O N    O F    L I V E S T O C K    W A S T E   

practices such as open dumps, piles of rotting manure, and other accumulations  of waste 
materials.   The Department  of Environmental  Protection  issues permits for solid waste com- 
posting operations, but not for routine farm activities.  Check with DEP about options you are 
considering and whether a permit would be needed. 

 

Waste Analysis 
Use available laboratories for waste analysis to ensure agronomic rates are not exceeded.  The 
Livestock Waste Testing Lab in Live Oak provides free analysis of livestock waste and can be 
contacted at (386)  362-1725.   The Florida Rural Water Association at 1-800-872-8207  pro- 
vides free assistance for collecting and transporting  waste samples to the Live Oak laboratory. 
(See the back of this booklet for additional contact information  for waste analysis and trans- 
portation.) 

 
 

Manure Spreader Calibration 
Spread waste evenly on fields or pastures to prevent high nutrient  concentration  areas.  Use a 
calibrated manure spreader to spread waste; front-end loaders are not appropriate for waste 
application. 

 

 
Planting Crops  

To contain and use nutrients  effectively, plant crops as soon as possible following the applica- 
tion of animal waste.  If there is concern about ammonia toxicity effects on seed germination, 
contact a crop consultant. 

 
 

Cover Crops 
To recover and retain residual nutrients,  use cover crops between cropping periods where pos- 
sible. 

 
 

Sinkholes 
Maintain a sufficient non-application buffer zone and/or berm to prevent applied waste and 
rainwater in contact with waste from entering sinkholes. The recommended  buffer zone width 
on level ground with good vegetative cover is 50’. If poor vegetative cover is present or antic- 
ipated, or if the soil surface slopes towards the sinkhole, then buffer zones up to 100’ should 
be considered.  (Contact the NRCS representative listed in the back for additional information 
regarding sinkhole buffers.) 

 
 

Buffer Zone Vegetation 
For optimal nutrient  uptake in the buffer zone, use the recommended  grass species for the soil 
series present and geographic location.   On moderately drained soils establish a regionally 
appropriate  improved  Bermuda grass, and on slightly poor  to poorly drained  soils establish 
bahia grass.  (Contact the NRCS or IFAS representatives listed in the back for additional infor- 
mation regarding appropriate  buffer widths and grass species.) 

57 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



G O O D    N E I G H B O R    G U I D E L I N E S    F O R    O N - F A R M    A N D    O F F S I T E    A P P L I C A T I O N    O F    L I V E S T O C K    W A S T E   

Well Protection 
Maintain a sufficient non-application buffer zone and/or berm to prevent applied waste and 
rainwater   in  contact   with  waste  from  entering   wells  or  other   potable  water  sources. 
Maintain  a 200’ non-application buffer zone around  a private  potable  water source  and  a 
300’ buffer zone when the private potable water source is located down slope of the waste 
application  site.   A 500’ buffer zone  is required  for potable  community  wells and  water 
sources. 

 
 

SURFACE  WATER PROTECTION 

With over 50,000 miles of rivers and streams, 7800 lakes, and 4000 square miles of estuaries, 
Florida has an abundance  of surface waters that are used for a variety of purposes.  Protection 
of surface waters is crucial towards safeguarding aquatic life and human health. Agriculture can 
take steps towards effectively protecting  Florida’s surface waters: 

 
 

Agronomic Rates 
Prevent any unnecessary  discharge of nutrients  to surface waters of the state by spreading 
animal waste and other fertilizers on crops or pastures at agronomic rates. 

 
 

Timing of Waste Application 
To prevent surface runoff of the waste to surface waters, do not apply animal waste before 
or during storm events or when the ground  is saturated. 

 
 

Non-Application Zones 
Do not apply animal waste in or in close proximity of surface waters of the state, wetlands, 
stormwater  ditches or any conveyance system that is connected  with bodies of water. 

 
 

Surface Water Buffer Zones  
Maintain a sufficient non-application buffer zone and/or berm to prevent applied waste and 
rainwater  in contact  with  waste from entering  water bodies, streams,  ponds,  or wetlands. 
The recommended  buffer zone width on level ground  with good vegetative cover is 50’. If 
poor vegetative cover is present or anticipated, or if the soil surface slopes towards the water 
body, then buffer zones up to 100’ should be considered.   (Contact  the NRCS representative 
listed in the back for additional information  regarding buffer zones.) 

 
 

REDUCING UNWANTED CONDITIONS 
 
 

Improper  application  of animal  waste  can  lead  to  unpleasant  living  circumstances  for  sur- 
rounding  communities.  Minimizing odors and managing waste appropriately  illustrates  a will- 
ingness to be a good neighbor. 

58 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



G O O D    N E I G H B O R    G U I D E L I N E S    F O R    O N - F A R M    A N D    O F F S I T E    A P P L I C A T I O N    O F    L I V E S T O C K    W A S T E   

ODORS 

Staging Solids in Fields 
Manage offsite waste application areas to minimize odors and prevent the occurrence of nui- 
sance conditions  for surrounding neighbors.   Avoid staging manure  or spoiled feed in fields 
for longer than  necessary.   Staging times for manure  or waste feed prior to land application 
should be kept to a minimum. 

 
 

Meteorological Considerations 
When  possible,  avoid  spreading  waste  materials  when  conditions  are  present  that  would 
increase odors being carried offsite.  Those conditions  include stagnant periods, when there is 
minimal mixing (no odor dilution),  and when residences are located downwind. 

 
 

Incorporating Solids 
To reduce odors, evenly spread and, where applicable, incorporate  the solids into the ground. 
Use a calibrated manure spreader; front-end loaders are not appropriate for waste distribution. 
When possible, avoid spreading waste near residences on weekends. 

 
 

FLIES 

Food Sources 
Manage offsite waste application  areas so flies are not presented  with a highly concentrated 
food source.  Fly food sources include spoiled silage, sand bedding, and manure solids; avoid 
staging piles in the fields for longer than necessary prior to land application. 

 
 

Technical Assistance 
If flies substantially increase in numbers  following animal or silage waste application,  imme- 
diately  till  waste  into  the  soil  or  utilize  a  drag  harrow.     Contact  University  of  Florida 
Entomologist Dr. Jerry Butler at (352) 392-1901, extension 152 for additional information. 
(Additional contact information  listed in the back.) 

 
 

Pesticides 
If pesticide applications are necessary, follow all product application and safe handling guide- 
lines provided by the manufacturer. 

 
 

OTHER 
 
 

RECORD  KEEPING 

Importing & Exporting Animal Waste 
Whether  you are the provider or receiver of animal waste material, maintain  a record of the 
day, amount,  and source of waste removed from or brought  to the site. 

59 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



G O O D    N E I G H B O R    G U I D E L I N E S    F O R    O N - F A R M    A N D    O F F S I T E    A P P L I C A T I O N    O F    L I V E S T O C K    W A S T E   

Field Application Records 
Maintain records on nutrient  application rates on a field-by-field basis. Use recent waste analy- 
sis  or  an  estimated  nutrient   content  of  the  applied  waste  to  calculate  application  rates. 
(Contacts  listed under  the agronomic rate section of the contacts and references section can 
provide information  related to nutrient  application record keeping.) 

 
 

COMMUNITY  RELATIONS 

Public Perception 
The public may assume that standing piles of material from dairy farms, horse farms, chicken 
farms or any animal feeding operation consist wholly of manure.   If piles of muck or bedding 
material, with low nutrient  content,  are to be staged for any length of time, notify neighbors 
that the piles are not manure and do not present a threat to ground water or the environment. 
Routinely spread piles with low nutrient  content to avoid public misperception. 

 
 

Public Education 
If presented  with the opportunity, inform surrounding neighbors  that the application  of ani- 
mal waste is a beneficial reuse of a waste product,  improves soil conditions  and reduces the 
need for commercial fertilizer. 

 
 

Contact Number 
Provide surrounding neighbors with a business contact number to relay concerns. 

 
 

Distribution of Guidelines 
Regardless of who is responsible for management of the waste, improper handling will reflect 
badly on the source of the waste. If you distribute  animal waste to other farmers or property 
owners, provide them with a copy of these guidelines. 

 
 

Agency Contacts 
If you receive complaints  or concerns  from the public regarding  your application  activities, 
contact the appropriate  state agencies and local elected officials, and inform them of the situ- 
ation. 

 
 

Public Outreach Suggestions 
Make  available  small  quantities   of  manure   for  the  neighbors   to  use  in  their   gardens, 
flowerbeds,  or  newly  established  lawn.    Sponsor  local  programs,  organizations  or  youth 
leagues. 

60 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



G O O D    N E I G H B O R    G U I D E L I N E S    F O R    O N - F A R M    A N D    O F F S I T E    A P P L I C A T I O N    O F    L I V E S T O C K    W A S T E   

CONTACTS AND REFERENCES FOR ANIMAL WASTE MANAGEMENT 
 

 
ARGONOMIC RATES 

 

➡ Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS) 
Steve Boetger, State Agronomist 
(352) 338-9548 
Website:  http://www.fl.nrcs.usda.gov 

➡ University of Florida Agricultural & Biological Engineering Dept. 
Dr. Roger A. Norstedt 
(352) 392-1864 ext. 103  Email: roger@agen.ufl.edu 
Website:  http://www.agen.ufl.edu 

➡ Florida Rural Water Association 
Jack Hodges, Agricultural Wastewater Technician 
1-800-872-8207 or  (850) 668-2746  Email: frwa@ix.netcom.com 
Website:  http://frwa.net 

➡ Florida Department of Environmental  Protection (DEP) 
Tallahassee Division of Water Resource Management (850) 487-1855 or 
contact the Industrial Wastewater Section of the nearest DEP district office. 
Website:  http://dep.state.fl.us 

 
BUFFER ZONES 

 

➡ Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS) 
Greg Hendricks, State Resource Conservationist 
(352) 338-9543 
Website:  http://www.fl.nrcs.usda.gov 

 
COMPOSTING 

 

➡ University of Florida Agricultural & Biological Engineering Dept. 
Dr. Roger A. Norstedt 
(352) 392-1864 ext. 103  Email: roger@agen.ufl.edu 
Website:  http://www.agen.ufl.edu 

➡ Florida Backyard Composting Tutorial and Information 
Website:  http://compost.ifas.ufl.edu/ 

➡ Composting Horse Manure 
SS-ANS-001E. A. Ott, E. L. Johnson, R. A. Nordstedt 
http://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/BODY_AN040 

 

➡ On-Farm Composting of Poultry Litter P&SS Info # 319, 
Walker, F. 
http://www.agriculture.utk.edu/ansci/poultry/PSS319.htm 

➡ A Practical Guide for Composting Poultry Litter 
MAFES Bulletin 981 published June, 1992.  Brake, J. D. 
http://www.msstate.edu/dept/poultry/complit.htm 

61 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.fl.nrcs.usda.gov/
mailto:roger@agen.ufl.edu
mailto:roger@agen.ufl.edu
http://www.agen.ufl.edu/
mailto:frwa@ix.netcom.com
mailto:frwa@ix.netcom.com
http://frwa.net/
http://dep.state.fl.us/
http://www.fl.nrcs.usda.gov/
mailto:roger@agen.ufl.edu
mailto:roger@agen.ufl.edu
http://www.agen.ufl.edu/
http://compost.ifas.ufl.edu/
http://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/BODY_AN040
http://www.agriculture.utk.edu/ansci/poultry/PSS319.htm
http://www.msstate.edu/dept/poultry/complit.htm


 

➡ Florida Department of Environmental  Protection (DEP) 
Tallahassee Solid Waste section (850) 488-0300 or contact the Solid Waste Section of 
the nearest DEP district office.  Website: 
http://www.dep.state.fl.us/waste/categories/solid_waste/pages/composting.htm 

 
FLY CONTROL 

 

➡ University of Florida Entomology and Nematology Dept. 
Dr. Jerry Butler 
(352) 392-1901 ext. 152  Email: jfb@gnv.ifas.ufl.edu 
Website:  http://entnemdept.ifas.ufl.edu 

 
LABORATORIES  (FREE ASSISTANCE) 

 

➡ Livestock Waste Testing Lab (analysis free of charge - except for grant-funded  research) 
Justin Jones, Research Coordinator 

7580 CR 136 
Live Oak, Florida 32060 
(386) 362-1725  Email: JTJones@mail.ifas.ufl.edu 
Website:  http://nfrec-sv.ifas.ufl.edu 

 

➡ Florida Rural Water Association (FRWA) (transporting samples - free of charge) 
Jack Hodges, Agricultural Wastewater Technician 
1-800-872-8207 or  (850) 668-2746  Email: frwa@ix.netcom.com 
Website:  http://frwa.net 

 
OTHER CONTACTS 

 

➡ Florida Department of Agriculture & Consumer Services (FDACS) 
Website:  http://doacs.state.fl.us 

 

➡ Local Water Management District 
Website:  http://www.dep.state.fl.us/secretary/watman/wmd_map.htm 

 

➡ Florida Cooperative Extension 
Website:   http://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/ 

 
* This document  was produced  with the cooperation  of the Florida Dairy Industry,  dairy consult- 

ants, various state agencies listed above, and other livestock industry stakeholders. 
 
* Please distribute  these Good Neighbor  Guidelines  to applicable businesses,  farms, dairies, and 

homeowners. 
 
* These guidelines may be subject to revision based on new information or improved management 

practices. 
 
Cover Photos courtesy of USDA-NRCS, Ellen McCarron, and the William H. Lane family. 

 
 
 
 

This publication was funded in part by the 
Florida Department of Environmental  Protection with a Section 319 Nonpoint  Source Management 

Program Grant from the U.S. Environmental  Protection Agency. 

62 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.dep.state.fl.us/waste/categories/solid_waste/pages/composting.htm
mailto:jfb@gnv.ifas.ufl.edu
http://entnemdept.ifas.ufl.edu/
mailto:JTJones@mail.ifas.ufl.edu
http://nfrec-sv.ifas.ufl.edu/
mailto:frwa@ix.netcom.com
mailto:frwa@ix.netcom.com
http://frwa.net/
http://doacs.state.fl.us/
http://www.dep.state.fl.us/secretary/watman/wmd_map.htm
http://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/


 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.c. 

ORDINANCES/PUBLIC HEARING 

Ordinance No. 2013-11 - 2nd Reading 

(Historical Legacy) 

 

 
 

63 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 1 
 

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2013-11 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO HISTORICAL 
LEGACY USES AND APPROVALS; AMENDING THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), 
TO AMEND SECTION 75-035, ENTITLED “USES AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2006” 
TO ADD THE TERM HISTORICAL LEGACY TO THE SECTION TITLE;  TO 
SPECIFY THE CATEGORY OF SPECIAL EXCEPTION NECESSARY FOR 
CERTAIN USES IN THE ZONING CATEGORY; TO REQUIRE THAT THE  
PROPERTY ON WHICH THE USE IS LOCATED SHALL HAVE BEEN 
OWNED AND SUBJECT TO A HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION IN THE NAME OF 
THE OPERATOR; TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE DOES NOT PRESENT A 
THREAT TO PUBLIC HEALTH;  TO REQUIRE THAT THE USE IS NOT 
CURRENTLY THE  SUBJECT OF A TOWN CODE ENFORCEMENT ACTION; 
TO REQUIRE THAT THE OWNER-OPERATOR SUBMIT AN AFFIDAVIT 
STIPULATING TO COMPLIANCE WITH CERTAIN CONDITIONS;  TO 
REQUIRE REVIEW AND INSPECTION BY THE TOWN; PROVIDING THAT 
CERTAIN USES ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR APPROVAL UNDER THIS 
SECTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has directed staff and the Unified Land 

Development Code (ULDC) Review Committee to prepare corrective amendments to 

Section 75-035 that will result in a process to permit “historical legacy” uses in the 

Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning district.   

WHEREAS, In response to the Council directive the Town’s staff has prepared 

proposed amendments to the Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) and,  

WHEREAS, the Town’s ULDC Review Committee considered the proposed 

ULDC amendments at its October 17, 2013, meeting and recommended that the Town 

Council approve the amendments to the ULDC proposed by staff subject to revisions 

which have been incorporated in Exhibit A  hereto; and,  

64 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

WHEREAS, the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board considered the proposed 

ULDC amendments at its December 12, 2013, meeting and pursuant to Chapter 163, Part 

II, Florida Statutes, recommended that the Town Council approve the amendments to the 

ULDC as worded in “Exhibit A” hereto; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves finds that the  
 
adoption of this ordinance, to revise Section 75-035, entitled “Uses as of October 1,  
 
2006”,   is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, and in the best health and  
 
welfare interests of the Town, its property owners and residents.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

  
Section 1:  That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified and 

confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this 

Ordinance.   

Section 2:  That the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, hereby 

amends the Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) by amending Section 75-

035, entitled “Uses as of October 1, 2006”, as fully set forth in “EXHIBIT A”, and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 3:  Conflicts.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or 

parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict.   

Section 4:  Severability.  If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or 

word of this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, 

inoperative, or void, such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

65 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Section 5:  Codification.  The Town Clerk shall cause this ordinance to be 

codified as a part of the ULDC. 

Section 6:  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon 

adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 4th DAY 
OF MARCH, 2014. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, 
THIS _____ DAY OF ____________________, 2014.     
            
    

       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
       FLORIDA 
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, MMC    Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel    
Town Clerk    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Historical Legacy Amendments 
 

 (Ref: Following Page) 
 

Amendments to the following ULDC Section:               
 

1. Section 75-035. Uses as of October 1, 2006 
 

NOTE:  Underlined text is an addition to Section  75-035 and struck through  text is a 
deletion to Section 75-035. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

 
 

Section 75-035. -  Historical Legacy Uses as of October 1, 2006.  

Certain uses that were in existence as of October 1, 2006 are not contained in 
the table of permitted uses for the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning district.  
Such uses, referred  to as “Historical Legacy Uses”, but may be allowed to 
continue to exist, subject to following:  

(A) The applicant shall have the burden of proof to demonstrate that the use was in 
existence on the property as of October 1, 2006; and  

 
(B) The applicant shall apply for a Category B Special Exception pursuant to Section 

170-010(B) of this Code; and 
 

(C) The application for the Special Exception shall be filed within eight months of                  
the effective date of these regulations.  A historical legacy use shall comply with 
either of the following criteria: (1) Be located on a property owned by a resident 
with a homestead exemption within the Town; or (2) be located on a separate 
property within the Town, either contiguous or non-contiguous to the 
homesteaded property. In either case, the business owner’s homestead 
exemption shall have been in effect and the historical legacy business shall have 
been in continuous operation within the Town since October 1, 2006. 

  
(D)  The use does not present a threat to public health or safety.. 
 
(E) The property upon which the use is located is not currently the subject of a 

Town code enforcement action, with the exception of a property containing a 
use that qualifies for a Historical Legacy Category B Special Exception. 

 
(F) The owner-operator has submitted an affidavit: (1) certifying compliance with 

Sections (A) –(E) above (2) limiting the continued operation  of the use  to both 
the Parcel Control Number (PCN) and operator; (3) agreeing not to diversify the 
existing business; (4) agreeing that no signs visible from the road  which 
advertise or promote the  use will be erected on the property; (5) agreeing to 
maintain, and provide a copy to the Town, an active annual local business tax 
receipt; (6) acknowledging that, in the event of the transfer of the property to a 
new owner the right to operate the use shall cease; (7) acknowledging that, in 
the event of the owner’s loss of his or her homestead exemption on the 
property, the right to operate the use shall cease; and (8) agreeing to conditions 
imposed by Town Staff including, but not limited to, access, parking, hours of 

68 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

operation, noise generation, location of the business activities upon the 
property, number of on-site employees, clients or customers allowed, deliveries, 
waste disposal, proof of insurance, etc.     

 
(G) The owner-operator has undergone a review and inspection by the Town to 

determine compliance with Sections (A) – (F) above.  
 
(H) The following uses are not eligible for approval under this section: 

 
(1)  Adult entertainment establishment, as defined in Section 10-015: Definitions. 
 
(2)  Recreational vehicle or mobile home park, where parking spaces are rented 

or sold and provided with one or more of the following services:  potable water, 
electrical and/or sewage disposal. 

 
(3) Junk dealer, as defined in Section 17-75(a) of the Palm Beach County Code        

of  Ordinances. 
 
(4) Additional uses determined by Town staff to be non-compliant with Articles 

45: Property Maintenance and Article 50:  Public Nuisances.   
 
(I) All Historical Legacy Special Exception B approvals by the Town Manager shall 

be placed on Consent Agenda for Town Council acceptance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a. 

ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 

Gas Tax Map Report 

(No Backup) 
 

70 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Auditor Retention Letter 

71 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



72 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



73 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



74 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



75 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



76 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



77 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



78 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



79 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



80 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



81 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



82 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



83 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



84 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



85 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



86 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



87 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a. Addition 

OLD BUSINESS 

Original Auditor Contract 

88 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



89 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



90 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



91 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



92 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



93 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



94 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



95 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



96 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



97 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



98 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



99 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



100 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



101 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



102 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



103 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



104 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



105 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



106 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



107 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



108 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



109 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



110 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



111 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



112 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



113 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



114 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



115 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



116 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



117 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



118 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



119 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



120 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



121 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



122 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



123 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



124 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



125 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



126 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



127 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



128 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



129 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



130 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



131 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



132 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



133 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



134 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



135 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 10. 

NEW BUSINESS 

None 

136 of 136   03/18/2014 Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA
	2.a. Minutes
	4. Presentations-none
	5. Committee Reports-none
	6. Resolutions-none
	7.a. Ord No 2014-03
	7.b. Ord No 2014-04
	7.a.b. Ords Backup
	7.c. Ord No 2013-11
	8.a. Administrative Update
	9.a. Old Business
	9.a. Addition
	10. New Business-none



